EPSOM’'S TOWN POUND
AND TRAMPHOUSE

Thefirst mention of atown pound wasin March of 1788 when Francis L ocke was sel ected as pound
keeper. The pound was near the parsonage, andin 1795, at town meeting it wasvoted “that any person or
personsmay movethe pound in Epsom further back on the parsonage | ot so that the front thereof may
stand parallel with thewall back of the schoolhouse, provideit be placed and underpinned aswell asitis
now and without any expenseto thetown.” It remained at thislocation, still with FrancisL ocke as pound
keeper until 1808, when in thetown warrant iswas asked “to see what method the town will adopt to erect
apound for theuseof saidtown.” It wasvoted that apound be erected on Capt. Samuel L ocke'sland near
the house of Reuben L ocke, lately occupied, on the turnpike road; that the pound for the use of thetown be
built of stone, thirty fivefeet squarewithin sideat the bottom and four feet thick at the bottom; and two feet
at thetop, and six feet high of stonewith acap of yellow pine 8inchesby 10 inchesfree of sap; that the
building of the pound be set up by the Selectmen at public auction to thelowest bidder. Thissitewasdown
near what waslater Knowle sstore, on the new turnpike road, which bypassed the older route up Center
Hill to get to the coast. Thetown center was shifting, and the property owner, Samuel L ocke, was el ected
pound keeper. Samuel Lockewas one of severa tavern/store ownersin the area, another was John
Batchelder, who was pound keeper in 1810. Thejob returned to Samuel Lockewho held it until hissudden
deathin 1816, andin 1817 it washeld by hisson Daniel EvansLocke. By 1820 Abel Brown assumed the
dutiesof that office, followed by John Ham Jr. for two years before Mr. Brown once again took over its
upkeep for the next severa years.

Town reportsand records | apse, and the next mention of the town pound wasin June of 1876, when
Andrew S. Evans, who lived not far from the pound, wroteto the Selectmen—*1 hereby notify you that the
pound in thistown had been and isnow out of repair. | therefore hereby request youto putitinrepairin
accordancewiththelaw of thisState. If thisrequestisnot complied with | intend to bring suit against the
town.”

Theresolution of thematter isunknown.

It isnot exactly known when thetown started to pay expensesfor trans entsand trampsthrough town.
Budgetsfrom the mid 1880’ salready show that individualsintownwerepaid adollar for the careof each
tramp—with the Chedey Brothersin oneyear receiving $57 dollars. The carefor trampsand thefate of the
town pound coincidein 1902, asthisarticlefrom the early 1940’ sin the Union shows, and compl etesour
history of each.

Epsom Tramp House at
Epsom Has New L ocation

“Specia totheUnion. Epsom, Aug. 21. — The Epsom tramp houseisone of thefirst victimsof the
construction project on the Concord-Dover road, Route 9, being built through thetown. Thetramp house
wassituated directly inthe path of the new road, asit straightens out to cut off acurve east of the Epsom
Post office.

Thebuilding wasloaded onto atrailer truck, and the moversplanned to set it downinanearby field.
However, the owner of theland put up avigorous protest, and the tramp house moved on. After making
variousattemptsto find asituation for thewandering tramp house, it finally cameto rest nearly three miles
nearer Concord, on town land west of the Four Corners.



Thetramp housewasbuiltin 1902 by
Jackson C. Philbrick, father of M.C.
Philbrick, Epsom’sveteran town clerk.
Thedecisonto haveatown shelter for
trampscame after astormy session at
thetown meeting when some objected
because thetown had paid $60to local
factotumsfor feeding and lodging 60
itinerantsthepreviousyear.
Thebuilding was erected onthe site of
theold town pound, using the stonewal |
for afoundation. Thetota cost was
$96.32. The stove camefromtheold
Congregationa churchwhichformerly
stood at Epsom. The house wasfitted

with bunks, and was otherwise comfortably equipped.

However, theknights of theroad showed their appreciation by stealing the bed clothing and breaking up the
bunksfor fuel. After variouseffortswere given to furnish the building, effortswere given up and now the
paraphernaiaincludesthe stove, apileof cordwood and asaw. Thosewho wish to keep warm havethe
privilege of sawing up the cordwood for their use.

Many of thetramps makeregular stopsat the Epsom tramp house, returning at interval sto take advantage
of thetown’shospitality. It wasformerly the customto furnish each visitor with aloaf of bread and acan of
beans; and sometimes some other supplieswereincluded. Oneman alwayscalled for dried apricotsand
canned heat to cook them with. At present each tramp receivesaloaf of bread and an invitation to moveon
inthemorning.

Theyear 1937 was abanner onefor tramps, as455 of them were given anight’slodging and abreakfast at
acost tothetown of $182. In 1940 the expense waslessthan half of thisfigure. Many of theyounger men
who were unemployed because of actual scarcity of payingwork areno longer ontheroad, but theold
timersmakethe usual rounds. One of them called thisweek at the generd store near theformer location of
thetramp houseand said wistfully “Well, | seethe old hotel hasgone!™’



